
TOWN OF 

NEW LONDON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
375 MAIN STREET • NEW LONDON, NH  03257 • WWW.NL-NH.COM 

 
 

 

Board of Selectmen 

Meeting Minutes 

March 24, 2008 

 

PRESENT: 

Mark Kaplan, Selectman 
Larry Ballin Selectman 
Brian Prescott, Selectman 
Jessie Levine, Town Administrator 
Sue Clough, Volunteer applicant—Solid Waste Committee, Conservation Commission 
Michael Todd, Volunteer applicant—Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Laura Alexander, Volunteer applicant—Conservation Commission 
Debbie Cross, InterTown Record 
 
Mark Kaplan opened the meeting at 8 a.m., and the Board addressed 12 areas of business during the 
meeting. 
 
Minutes March 17, 2008—Larry Ballin moved to accept. Brian Prescott seconded. No further 
discussion. Motion unanimously approved. 
 
Town Office Hours—Jessie Levine said that in response to complaints regarding accessibility of the 
Town Clerk’s office to people who cannot get here during the day, Linda Hardy and Joan Pankhurst are 
proposing changing their schedule to Monday through Thursday from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m., closed on Fridays. 
This would be a year-round change. She said that per State statute, the Town Clerk can set her own office 
hours, and the Selectmen set the hours for the Tax Collector; however in New London the same person 
holds both positions.  Jessie Levine said that she has discussed this idea with the staff of the Selectmen’s 
office as well, with the idea of having the entire office on the same schedule, but the staff of that office 
did not support the idea, feeling accessibility between 4 and 6 p.m. was not as critical for the Selectmen’s 
office.   
 
Selectmen expressed concern about the Town Clerk being closed three days in a row. This would be a 
particular hardship for people who come up on the weekends. They suggested that the two person staff 
split the ten hour shifts in order to keep the office open with at least one staff member on Friday and 
perhaps even on Saturday, or split the shifts on two days so that they could advertise that the office is 
open two nights a week with one person working 8 to 4 on those days, and the other working 10 to 6.  
Jessie Levine said she did broach the idea of one of the staff members working the ten hour days Monday 
through Thursday, and the other Tuesday through Friday, but the problem arose as to how shifts would be 
covered while one person is on vacation.   
 
Larry Ballin said that Monday through Friday is the usual schedule anticipated in the business world.  
Brian Prescott agreed, expressing concern that moving to a four day work week would send a bad signal 
to taxpayers.  Question was raised about whether or not productivity during the hours of 4 to 6 would be 
equivalent to that of a full Friday.  Mark Kaplan asked if they really anticipate that many people using 
that office between 4 and 6 p.m.  Jessie Levine said the Town Clerk office staff feels there would be quite 
a few users during that time period.  
 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes 
March 24, 2008 
Page 2 of 9 
 
 
She will relay the Selectmen’s concerns to the Town Clerk.  The staff of that office may decide to meet 
with the Selectmen themselves to further discuss this.  
 
Meeting with Sue Clough—Selectmen received copies of Sue Clough’s volunteer form indicating her 
interest in serving on one of the following: Conservation Commission, CAC, Solid Waste Committee, 
Master Plan subcommittee, Archives or Recreation.  Mark Kaplan noted that considering Sue Clough’s 
vast experience serving the Town in a variety of capacities, and her broad expertise, she should be 
appointed to any committee or board she wants.  
 
Larry Ballin asked if she has been on the Conservation Commission before. Sue Clough said no, but she 
was on the Solid Waste Committee at one point.  Selectmen observed that that Committee has not been 
active recently, and is in need of leadership and direction. Sue Clough said she feels that the Town must 
find ways to make recycling easier.  She has spoken with Richard Lee about the possibility that single 
stream recycling would reduce the awkwardness at the entrance that results from people stopping to 
recycle everything separately.  She added that she works well with Richard Lee, and she feels that that 
entire staff is wonderful.  
 
Regarding conservation, she said she feels it is important to find ways to spread that work across the 
Town, noting that there are other conservation oriented tasks than trail maintenance.  She said she feels it 
is important for conservation interests to draw as much support town-wide, including financial support, as 
possible.   
 
She said on whatever board she is appointed to, she would plan to just sit quietly for the first year and 
listen. 
 
Brian Prescott asked what her thoughts are on how the Conservation Commission handled the proposal to 
purchase the land by Clark Pond using capital reserve funds.  Does she feel that just one appraisal was 
adequate?  What are her feelings about the way that conservation land capital reserve is used (or, in the 
case of the purchase of the Inn land next door, not used), particularly if the economy continues to worsen.  
Sue Clough said that at the time of the Inn land purchase, the Selectmen did have some discussion about 
the possibility that some funding for that could come from that reserve. She reiterated her feeling that 
conservation is more than just trails, and the Conservation Commission has got to draw more people in to 
become involved with conservation of all sorts.   
 
Whipple Memorial Hall Renovations—Jessie Levine reported that the original idea of phasing in this 
work has turned out to be problematic.  For example, they have found a leak in the foundation wall 
behind the generator, as well as a couple of leaks in other locations.  The leaks in the foundation must be 
fixed before other work can proceed, and moving the generator would be expensive.  This would all have 
to be done before they can pour the concrete floor and install the radiant heating.  They would do the 
access ramp at the same time.   
 
She said that Brian Carey has given them an estimate of $350,000, but has said that number may come 
down when more precise specs are available.  Foremost Construction has given them an estimate of 
$280,000 but that did not include the sprinkler system. The Town has $150,000 in the capital reserve 
now.   
 
She said that phase one will be the most expensive phase, but upon consideration of all factors, it might 
make more sense to not do this in phases but, rather, to wait and do a more formal proposal process, then 
ask Town Meeting to appropriate the balance (that is, the difference between the proposal and the amount 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes 
March 24, 2008 
Page 3 of 9 
 
 
in the reserve at that time). She acknowledged that some carpenters would recommend not going through 
a formal proposal process for a reclamation project like this.  To some extent, that would make sense to 
just hire a local carpenter whom they know well and who would not be too expensive. However, that 
would open the possibility of people having the perception that the Town just plucked someone out of he 
air without exercising due diligence.   
 
Brian Prescott asked about the kitchen. Jessie Levine said the conference room, kitchen and bathroom 
would be public spaces. The conference room would also serve for police training.  She said they would 
like this building to be available to be used as a shelter in an emergency.  The tile floors and drainage 
proposed to be built into the new renovations would allow the basement to be used as an animal shelter.  
There may be some grant or other type funding for some of this.  (In response to Larry Ballin’s question, 
she said it would probably not be federal funding—particularly for an animal shelter, but perhaps funding 
from some other private source.)  In all, the renovated structure would have cross purposes.  She added 
that architect Chris Lizotte has said there would not be a lot of savings if they were to eliminate the 
kitchen and bathroom from the plans   
 
Brian Prescott agreed that it seems it would be better to wait and do this project all at once. Larry Ballin 
asked if there is a sense of urgency to any of this. Jessie Levine said the police are anxious to have their 
space finished, but they would rather have it done well.  Jessie Levine asked if the Selectmen concurred 
that they should continue to work with Chris Lizotte in coming up with precise specs for this, then solicit 
proposals and ultimately have the work done on the basis of those plans.  Larry Ballin asked if they are 
required to do that for a municipal building anyway. Jessie Levine said no, the only requirement is that 
the building meet all codes. Mark Kaplan asked to clarify that there is no requirement that the Town go 
out to bid for this, and then accept the lowest bid. Jessie Levine confirmed that that is not the requirement 
here, and that is why she would prefer to call it a proposal process rather than a bid process.  Mark Kaplan 
said he thinks they should get more than one quote. Jessie Levine agreed and said that is why they need 
plans. Mark Kaplan reminded everyone at this meeting, that Whipple is a special building to the Town, 
and it behooves them to proceed with care.   
 
Larry Ballin said he would like to go over and take a look at the site.  He questioned the idea of having 
radiant heat, saying that is very expensive to install, only 50% successful, and expensive to repair if it 
fails.  Jessie Levine said they have radiant heat in the Highway garage. Larry Ballin said, but that was a 
brand new construction, this is a reclamation project.  He expressed concern that with the raised floor they 
will lose 8-inches of ceiling space. Jessie Levine reminded him that when they removed the dropped-
ceiling tiles, they acquired 12-inches more ceiling space.  Right now, what they have there is a very 
uneven concrete floor, so they will need to pour a new floor anyway. And the added bonus is that the 
raised floor will be within four feet of the basement windows, thus allowing those windows to be 
considered egresses.  The only alternative to radiant heat would be baseboard heat.   
 
Larry Ballin agreed with Mark Kaplan on the importance of this building, and reiterated the point that 
there is no sense of emergency to getting all this done. He suggested they consider the fact that the Town 
may not need additional meeting space with the middle school site becoming available.  Jessie Levine 
said she disagreed for several reasons: (a) the middle school space is not a certainty, and its availability 
may not be for some time, (b) the library is considering expanding into its meeting room, thus eliminating 
that space for meetings, (c) outside of scheduled board meetings, this Sydney Crook room is used during 
the day by AIL.   
 
Selectmen agreed to put off commencing these renovations for at least one year while continuing to put 
money into the reserve, and obtaining more precise plans.  Jessie Levine said that after the reserve for this 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes 
March 24, 2008 
Page 4 of 9 
 
 
was opened, the Town put $25,000 into each year for several years, then raised that to $45,000 a year.  
Larry Ballin said that conceivably by next year, the reserve will have $195,000.   
 
Meeting with Michael Todd—Jessie Levine said there are two open spots on the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment.  Cheryl Devoe said she must decline reappointment to her regular position on the board, but 
is available for an alternate spot, and Michael Todd is finishing the one year left in Larry Ballin’s regular 
position. He is now seeking reappointment to that position—for the full three year term. Selectmen 
received his letter of interest in reappointment, dated March 11.   
 
Mark Kaplan asked Michael Todd how he feels about the ZBA’s work now and what he sees for that 
board in the future. Michael Todd said that the ZBA’s decisions are governed by (a) the ordinance, (b) 
case law, and (c) its own previous decisions.  He suggested the idea of that Board holding some informal 
sessions once in a while to take a look at recent case law. He also suggested that the Board’s own 
decisions could in some way be codified.  Right now, members must rely largely on memory. 
 
He would also like to see the packets that go to each ZBA member include a copy of the property deed 
and the minutes from the relative Conservation Commission and Planning Board meetings. As it is, ZBA 
members have to call members of those other boards to find out how they (planning and conservation) 
arrived at a given decision.  Larry Ballin asked if his wish to see the deed is because he feels a mortgage 
holder should be represented at the hearing as well. Michael Todd said no, but he feels it is important to 
see who the property owner is and what his or her connection is to the person representing him at the 
hearing.  Also, it would give ZBA members a precise description of the property, access etc.  He said it is 
important for the ZBA to know that the person appearing before it is the appropriate party, and that they 
do have jurisdiction over the matter.  Brian Prescott asked if he feels it is improper for the owner to be 
represented by an architect or engineer at ZBA hearings. Michael Todd said no, but the Board ought to 
know who the property owner is.  Jessie Levine said application packets do include letters of 
authorization from owners.  Michael Todd agreed, but said the deed would complete the chain as well as 
describe the property.   
 
Jessie Levine asked if he feels his legal education makes him a better ZBA member. Michael Todd said it 
is not a question of better or worse, but one of point-of-view.  He said it is important for the ZBA to 
proceed properly when arriving at a decision.  Ultimately, the case may be decided by the Superior Court.   
Jessie Levine said she does like the idea of the informal sessions to review case law.  Michael Todd said 
the idea would not be so much to study legal theory but to look at the facts of each case, and see how the 
court arrived at its decision.  Jessie Levine asked if he will be attending the State’s spring conferences on 
municipal law. Michael Todd said yes, and added that the Bar offers some training sessions as well.   
 
Larry Ballin reminded him that the ZBA is a board of peers, of volunteers, with a limited amount of time 
to give. He suggested that there be some separation of legal from local. He agreed that the ZBA is a quasi-
judicial board, but expressed concern that it not become an all judicial board—though he understands the 
desire to protect the board from appeals.   
 
Brain Prescott agreed, pointing out that in earlier years, more decisions were based on common sense.  
Now they have to be so careful. He, too, does not want it to lose the human aspect.  Michael Todd said he 
respects that, but pointed out that society in general, is becoming more litigious. Also, the law is 
becoming more complex. The Town keeps adding to the ordinance but never takes anything away. Jessie 
Levine agreed that the ordinance has become longer and more complex, but said they have taken things 
out of it as well.  She also greed that it is more requisite now than ever before that the ZBA adhere strictly 
to the five criteria for granting a variance.  Her concern with including the deeds in the packets is that the 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes 
March 24, 2008 
Page 5 of 9 
 
 
ZBA would be stepping outside its jurisdiction.  The ZBA can address only the appeal that is before it at 
any given time.  Larry Ballin agreed with Brian Prescott that twenty years ago, perhaps only one out of 20 
cases really met the criteria of hardship as it is defined by law now.   
 
Michael Todd said one concern he has had is that the ZBA is not willing to defer a case until more 
information can be obtained. Larry Ballin said that is in respect for the applicant. Most cases should be 
resolved in short order.   
 
He said he appreciates what Michael Todd brings to the table, but is concerned that there remain a 
distinction between the legal and the local.  The ZBA is not going to resolve court cases. 
 
Meeting with Laura Alexander—Jessie Levine said that two regular members’ terms expire on the 
Conservation Commission this year.  Laurie Alexander said that originally she came on the commission 
to complete a term of a retiring member, and has since completed one full three-year term. She is now 
seeking reappointment to a second full three-year term.  She said that she considered the partial term a 
learning experience and that during her full term she was able to participate more fully.  She said she 
brings to the table a desire to enhance conservation in the place where she lives, as well as her connection 
to the college and some expertise in conservation related areas.   
 
Brain Prescott asked if she perceives any specific problems for conservation in the Town. Laura 
Alexander reminded the meeting that people want to live here and continue to live here because they like 
the way New London is now. She perceives a challenge in finding the balance between protecting spaces 
and allowing more space for people to live.  She suggested that finding that balance is going to become 
tougher as they go forward.   
 
Larry Ballin asked if she felt that due diligence was exercised in preparing to present the Clark Pond 
warrant article to the Town.  Laura Alexander said the Conservation Commission has been working on 
plans to protect Clark Pond land, and to some day have public access to it, for a long time. When the 
Schulz family expressed an interest in selling this year, the Conservation Commission went forward with 
its presentation to the Town. She said the Conservation Commission did get a good cost appraisal on the 
property. She said she believed that came from a list of appraisers used by ASLPT.  
 
Mark Kaplan asked if ASLPT had any input into the Clark Pond land project. Laura Alexander said no.  
More typically, the Conservation Commission works with ASLPT when the latter asks it to become a 
back up grantee to an easement.  Jessie Levine clarified that ASLPT does not purchase land, and that the 
name of the appraiser came from a list of State licensed appraisers, not from ASLPT.  Larry Ballin said 
there have been a few occasions when ASLPT has bought land for the purpose of selling it into 
conservation. Jessie Levine agreed, but said ASLPT does not buy property for the purpose of owning it   
 
Mark Kaplan said that raises an interesting point.  He said the Selectmen and Budget Committee represent 
the Town, and are responsible for the tax rate, whereas ASLPT raises money itself; it receives many 
donations. He suggested the possibility that the Conservation Commission could raise money and gift it to 
the Town.  Those who feel strongly about protecting a particular property can donate; those who don’t 
would not be required to pay (through taxes). Jessie Levine reminded him that the warrant article did pass 
three to one.  Mark Kaplan said there are many taxpayers who cannot afford this.  Jessie Levine said that 
she understands, and all taxpayers should be more active in participating in the process and attending 
Town Meeting. 
 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes 
March 24, 2008 
Page 6 of 9 
 
 
Larry Ballin concluded by saying he feels Laura Alexander brings much to the table. Mark Kaplan and 
Brian Prescott both agreed, and the latter added his appreciation that Laura Alexander is willing to 
continue serving.  
 
Skateboard Park—Jessie Levine reminded Selectmen that three or four years ago, the Police 
Department asked for an ordinance that would prohibit skateboarding on public roads. There was some 
objection to that from people who felt that skateboarding was important for—among other reasons—
allowing kids transportation.  There was also some concern that prohibiting skateboards on roads would 
then force them to sidewalks where a different group (of pedestrians) would be vulnerable.  She said that 
at the time, the Selectmen advised the Police Department and Recreation Department to come up with 
some ideas for skateboards, including the potential location for a skateboard park.  
 
Now, she said, a different group has approached Chad Denning and the proposal on the table is to use the 
Town-owned land behind the sewer plant for a skateboard park.  Having the skateboard park on Town-
owned property raises a number of questions including financial.  Mark Kaplan said they would need to 
find out how many people are really interested in this. Jessie Levine agreed that the first step is to reach 
out, perhaps schedule a public meeting.  She noted that the discussion now is about doing this on Town 
property.  Mark Kaplan said he can think of better locations for a skateboard park, though he would have 
no objection to this if it is properly presented. First step is to find out how much interest there really is.   
 
Larry Ballin asked if the Outing Club is supportive of this. He too feels that the Town property behind the 
sewer plant would be an awkward location for a skateboard park. It would be difficult to keep on eye on 
activities there.  He said though he does not like the location being proposed, he would be happy to go 
forward with conversation on this subject.  He said he is all for the kids using the streets, and he does not 
sense a real hue and cry against that.  He suggested the college may have some ideas.  
 
Jessie Levine will follow-up with the Outing Club for their opinion and then look into the interest factor. 
She will let the Selectmen know if there will be a meeting on it.   
 

Volunteer Appointments 
 
o Jessie Levine said that the Conservation Commission has two positions to fill by appointment or 

reappointment.  Sue Clough has indicated interest in an appointment, and Laura Alexander is 
interested in reappointment. She said she has not heard from Emma Crane who is away this month, 
but assumes that Emma will seek reappointment.  

 
Mark Kaplan recommended that Selectmen reappoint Laura Alexander, but wait until speaking with 
Emma Crane before making a decision on the second position.  Larry Ballin agreed with reappointing 
Laura Alexander and also agreed that in fairness to both Emma Crane and Sue Clough, they should 
hear from Emma before making a decision on the other position.  Mark Kaplan asked if Emma Crane 
is appointed, would that fill that board.  Jessie Levine said it would—per State statute and a Town 
Meeting vote, the Conservation Commission is to have seven regular and two alternate positions.  She 
noted that Terry Dancy’s term as an alternate will expire next year, and Ruth White’s term as an 
alternate will expire in 2010.  Dan Allen’s, Vicki Koron’s and Les Norman’s terms as regular 
members will expire next year.  
 

o Selectmen observed that as it is, the Solid Waste Committee is in need of a chair, an agenda and a 
mission statement. Selectmen were unanimous in appointing Sue Clough to that Committee, citing 
her ability to work well with people, her knowledge of the Town, and her overall reasonableness.  



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes 
March 24, 2008 
Page 7 of 9 
 
 

Mark Kaplan clarified that this appointment does not rule out her being appointed to the Conservation 
Commission; as decided above, that position will remain open until after Selectmen have spoken with 
Emma Crane. 

 
o The Planning Board has two terms expiring this month, and per decision at the last Selectmen’s 

meeting, Jeff Hollinger and Tom Cottrill have been reappointed. 
 
o The ZBA has two terms expiring this year. Michael Todd seeks reappointment, Cheryl Devoe does 

not.  Selectmen said they would like to move an alternate into a regular position. Jessie Levine said 
Laurie DiClerico, Jeff Horton and Sue Andrews are the alternates and Laurie DiClerico has indicated 
an interest in being appointed to a regular member position.  She said that last year Laurie DiClerico 
participated in four hearings, Jeff Horton in one, and Sue Andrews in two.   

 
Larry Ballin observed that Michael Todd brings a good mix to the ZBA process. He agreed with 
Michael Todd’s desire to preclude appeals of ZBA decisions, but at times, some issues must be left to 
the next court. He disagrees with some of the things Michael Todd is asking for; those are excessive 
for the ZBA.  Jessie Levine expressed concern about Michael Todd’s questioning who has standing 
before the ZBA.  Brain Prescott agreed -- there’s never been any question about the person 
representing applications at ZBA hearings; no one comes to a ZBA hearing for fun.  Mark Kaplan 
agreed that Michael Todd brings a different dynamic to the ZBA, and he (Mark) said he does not 
think that’s a bad thing. In the future the ZBA will need more and more of that.  Jessie Levine said 
there are 234 zoning boards in the state, and not every one of them has a lawyer on it.  She suggested 
it is to be first of all a board of volunteer citizens.   
 
Brian Prescott moved to appoint Michael Todd to the ZBA.  Larry Ballin seconded. No further 
discussion. Motion unanimously approved.  Brian Prescott volunteered to attend some of the ZBA 
meetings to observe how things are going. 
 
Larry Ballin said he would support appointment of Laurie DiClerico to a regular position since she 
has indicated a willingness to serve there. He said she comes to every meeting well-prepared.  
Selectmen agreed. 

 
o Jessie Levine said she spoke with Mark Vernon about the opening on the Recreation Commission, but 

the latter indicated that he would decline at this time.  Keith Pomkoski is interested in reappointment. 
Selectmen agreed to reappoint him. 

 
o The CAC membership is in place. 
 
Other—Debbie Cross raised a question about financial aid for restoration or maintenance of historic 
barns. Jessie Levine said that she will review the information related to historic preservation of barns.   
 
Committee Reports—Larry Ballin and Jessie Levine attended last week’s Conservation Commission 
meeting.  Larry Ballin said he was surprised to learn at that meeting that the appraiser used for the Clark 
Pond land was one chosen by the seller.  He referred to Noel Weinstein’s letter suggesting that a second 
appraisal be done.  Jessie Levine said this article got a three to one approval at Town Meeting. Mark 
Kaplan agreed, that would answer Noel Weinstein’s letter.  Larry Ballin said that in the future the 
Selectmen must have much more oversight on how Town money is spent. Also, he said they should not 
spend $35,000 on closing costs if that is not necessary.   
 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes 
March 24, 2008 
Page 8 of 9 
 
 
Jessie Levine said they did talk about getting two appraisals in the future and the Conservation 
Commission agreed with this approach. Ideally, one appraiser should be chosen and paid for by the 
property owner, and one by the Town (and at Town expense).  In the case of the Inn property, the Town 
chose the appraiser. Mark Kaplan said, but they did receive other opinions to the effect that that property 
was worth more.  Jessie Levine said some of the opinions were that it was worth more, others held that it 
was worth less.   
 
She said Town Meeting approved the Clark Pond land purchase. People must learn to participate more.  
Brian Prescott said that people need to have a better idea of what they’re spending.  He objects to the 
phrase “no tax impact” at the end of the capital reserve expenditure articles.  He said he does not like the 
idea of building a war chest for this purpose.  He would feel better letting people vote to appropriate more 
money if and when a property with potential for conservation comes on the market.  Mark Kaplan agreed, 
pointing out that a bond would require a two-thirds vote.   
 
Jessie Levine said that at the Conservation Commission meeting, that board indicated that it would not 
support appointment of a Selectmen representative. Larry Ballin said it has been made clear that in the 
future there will be someone (from the Selectmen) there when financial issues are to be addressed or if the 
agenda includes an issue that the Selectmen will need to take a look at.  
 
Mark Kaplan referred to Sue Clough’s idea that there should be town-wide support and communication 
regarding conservation issues.  He suggested that a good place to start would be in getting appraisals for 
the properties listed in the Master Plan. He suggested people may be more cautious if they know what 
kind of voting power they have. Brian Prescott said he is not convinced of that. His concern is that if 
people know they have the money in their wallets (in the reserve), they will spend it.  
 
Larry Ballin said there was a problem with timing in the Clark Pond issue.  The Selectmen and Budget 
Committee should have had a chance to look at it more closely early in the process.  He observed that if 
this had been brought by petition, there would have been more discussion. 
__ 
 
In accordance with RSA 91-A:3 II, Selectmen moved, seconded, and approved the motion to enter non-
public session in order to discuss an employee request for tuition reimbursement. 
 
At 9:40 a.m., Selectmen reentered public session to sign the following items. 
 
Applications for Building Permits: 

• Lisa E. Crockford, 317 Barrett Road (Map & Lot 096-031-000) post structure fire clean up and 
demolition (Permit #08-028). Approved. 

• Abbott & Thea Lahti, 17 Deacon Hil (Map & Lot 122-009-000) remove collapsed shed and build 
replacement 28x28 shed/garage (Permit #08-029) Approved. 

• Gregory Gutsgell & Darren Phipps, 125 Newport Road (Map & Lot 059-001-000) demolish 
internally & externally to bare structure with exception of existing roofing (Permit #08-030) 
Approved. 

• Jonathan & Sara Scheuch, 192 Andover Road (Map & Lot  110-008-000) install solar hot water 
system (Permit #08-031) Approved. 

 

Appointment Cards: 

• John F. Hollinger (Jeff) for Planning Board Member, term expires 3-31-2011 – Approved. 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes 
March 24, 2008 
Page 9 of 9 
 
 

• Thomas Cottrill for Planning Board Member, term expires 3-31-2011 – Approved. 

• Laurids T. Lauridsen, III for Board of Firewards member, term expires 3-31-2011 - Approved 

 

Other 
 

• Payroll & Disbursement voucher week of 3/24/08 – Approved. 

• Professional Services Agreement from Municipal Resources, Inc. for the following activities: 
close 2007, prepare trial balance for auditors and provide guidance on accounting entries/issues.  

Meeting adjourned at 9:50 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Sarah A. Denz 
Recording Secretary 


